/ CITY OF

fr
5
m
i

Fair Campaign Practices Commission
Open Government Commission

CONCURRENT REGULAR MEETING OF THE FAIR CAMPAIGN PRACTICES
COMMISSION AND THE OPEN GOVERNMENT COMMISSION

MEETING AGENDA
March 16, 2023

6:30 p.m.

Civic Center — 2180 Milvia Street — Cypress Room (15t Floor)

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-
related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347
(TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date. Please refrain from
wearing scented products to this meeting.

Secretary: Samuel Harvey
The Commission may act on any item on this agenda
1. Call to Order 6:30 p.m.
2. Roll Call.
3. Public Comment. Comments on subjects not on the agenda that are within the
Commissions’ purview are heard at the beginning of meeting. Speakers may

comment on agenda items when the Commission hears those items.

4. Approval of minutes for February 16, 2023 FCPC-OGC Special Meeting

Fair Campaign Practices Commission (FCPC) Agenda

5. Reports.
a. Report from Chair.
b. Report from Staff.

6. Biennial adjustment of Berkeley Election Reform Act campaign contribution limit
dollar amount for cost of living pursuant to BMC section 2.12.415; discussion and
possible action.

7. Report from subcommittee on contribution limits under Berkeley Municipal Code
§ 2.12.415; presentation and discussion regarding contribution limits with Dan
Newman, President of MapLight; discussion and possible action.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 Tel: 510.981.6998 TDD: 510.981.6903 Fax: 510.981-6960
E-mail: FECPC@cityofberkeley.info



mailto:FCPC@cityofberkeley.info

FCPC / OGC Agenda
March 16, 2023

Page 2
Open Government Commission (OGC) Agenda
8. Reports.
a. Report from Chair.
b. Report from Staff.
9. Letter to City Council regarding commission meeting minutes posting

requirements; discussion and possible action.

10. Information Item: Health and Safety Protocols for In-Person Meetings of Berkeley
Boards and Commissions; discussion.

11.  Possible changes to public commenting practices for City Council meetings;
discussion and possible action.

12.  Adjournment.

Communications

¢ None

Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will
become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.
Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not
required, but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or
committee, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S.
Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee. If
you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not include
that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board,
commission or committee for further information. SB 343 Disclaimer: Any writings or
documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be
made available for public inspection at the City Attorney’s Office at 2180 Milvia St., 4" FI.,
Berkeley, CA.




ITEM 4

/ CITY OF

fr
5
m
i

Fair Campaign Practices Commission
Open Government Commission

DRAFT MINUTES
February 16, 2023

CONCURRENT SPECIAL MEETING OF THE FAIR CAMPAIGN PRACTICES
COMMISSION AND THE OPEN GOVERNMENT COMMISSION

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this
meeting was conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.

Secretary: Samuel Harvey

Members Present: Jessica Blome, Janis Ching, Pedro Hernandez, Patrick O’'Donnell,
James, Hynes

Also Present: Samuel Harvey, Staff Secretary

1. Call to Order

Chair called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.
2. Roll Call
Roll call taken.

3. Public Comment

Two speakers.

4. Approval of Minutes:

a. January 19, 2023 FCPC-OGC Concurrent Regular Meeting

a. Public comment: none.
b. Commission discussion and action.

Motion to approve minutes (M/S/C: O’'Donnell/Hernandez; Ayes: Blome, Ching,
Hernandez, O’'Donnell, Hynes; Noes: none; Abstain: none; Absent: Tsang.)

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 Tel: 510.981.6998 TDD: 510.981.6903 Fax: 510.981-6960
E-mail: ECPC@cityofberkeley.info



mailto:FCPC@cityofberkeley.info

FCPC / OGC Minutes ITEM 4

February 16, 2023

Page 2
FCPC Agenda
5. Reports
a. Report from Chair
b. Report from Staff
6. Biennial adjustment of Berkeley Election Reform Act dollar amounts for

cost of living pursuant to BMC sections 2.12.415 and 2.12.545

a. Public comment: One speakers.
b. Commission discussion and action.

Motion to approve cost of living adjustments (M/S/C: O’Donnell/Blome; Ayes: Blome,
Ching, Hernandez, O’Donnell, Hynes; Noes: none; Abstain: none; Absent: Tsang.)

7. Report from contribution limits subcommittee under BMC § 2.12.415

a. Public comment: No speakers.
b. Commission discussion.

OGC Agenda
8. Reports
a. Report from Chair.
b. Report from Staff.
9. Letter to Council regarding commission meeting minutes posting

requirements

a. Public comment: One speaker.
b. Commission discussion.

10. Use if Live Transcription for teleconferenced meetings

a. Public comment: One speaker.
b. Commission discussion and action.

Motion to approve proposed changes to City Council procedures from Commissioner
Ching with revisions based on Commission discussion and send to Council (M/S/C:
Blome/O’Donnell; Ayes: Blome, Ching, Hernandez, O’Donnell, Hynes; Noes: none;
Abstain: none; Absent: Tsang.)



FCPC / OGC Minutes ITEM 4

February 16, 2023
Page 3

11. Possible changes to public commenting practices for City Council
meetings

a. Public comment: One speaker.
b. Commission discussion and action.

Motion to direct Commissioner Ching as Commission’s designee to attend Febuary 28,
2023 City Council meeting and express concurrence with the Agenda and Rules
Committee’s negative recommendation for this item (M/S/C: Blome/O’Donnell; Ayes:
Blome, Ching, Hernandez, O’'Donnell, Hynes; Noes: none; Abstain: none; Absent:
Tsang.)

Joint FCPC-OGC Agenda

12. Election of FCPC-OGC Chair and Vice-Chair; discussion and possible
action

a. Public comment: no speakers.
b. Commission discussion and action

Motion to elect Pedro Hernandez as Vice Chair (M/S/C: Blome/O’Donnell; Ayes: Blome,
Ching, Hernandez, O’Donnell, Hynes; Noes: none; Abstain: none; Absent: Tsang.)

Motion to elect James Hynes as Chair (M/S/C: O’'Donnell/Blome; Ayes: Blome, Ching,
Hernandez, O’Donnell, Hynes; Noes: none; Abstain: none; Absent: Tsang.)

13. Adjournment

Motion to adjourn M/S/C: O’'Donnell/Ching; Ayes: Blome, Ching, Hernandez, O’Donnell,
Tsang, Hynes; Noes: none; Abstain: none; Absent: Bernstein.)

The meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m.



ITEM 6

City Clerk Department

March 16, 2023

To: Fair Campaign Practices Commission
From: Mark Numainville, City Clerk
Subject: Mandated Cost of Living Adjustments for Candidate Contribution Amount

Pursuant to Sections 2.12.075 and 2.12.415 under the Berkeley Election Reform Act, certain
data points and dollar amounts are required to be adjusted by the Commission in January of
each odd-numbered year. The adjustment for the dollar amounts is based on the Consumer
Price Index for the San Francisco Area. The formula established by the State Fair Political
Practices Commission for adjusting contribution limits for state candidates was applied below.

2022 Annual CPI
2022 Dollar Amounts X = 2023 Dollar Amounts
2020 Annual CPI

The CPI numbers used are the December 2020 number (302.948) and the December 2022
number (331.22). The December number is used because the State Department of Finance
does not calculate the standard CPI-U in January.

The maximum contribution amount is $250.00 (BMC 2.12.415). For the January 2023
adjustments, there is an increase from the $250.00 contribution amount limit and the new
contribution limit is $270.00.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-6900 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-6901
E-Mail: clerk@cityofberkeley.info Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/



mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info
https://berkeleyca.gov/

ITEM 7

2022
Office Sought Candidate Total Expenditures
Auditor Jenny Wong* $ 17,610.00
Rent Stabilization Board Soli Albert* $ 35,587.04
Rent Stabilization Board Stefan Elgstrand* $ 12,335.76
Rent Stabilization Board Negeene Mosaed $ 11,797.95
Rent Stabilization Board Wendy Hood $ 10,440.85
Rent Stabilization Board Vanessa Marrero* $ 10,228.00
Rent Stabilization Board Ida Martinac* $ 8,889.02
Rent Stabilization Board Soulmaz Panahi $ 5,046.51
Rent Stabilization Board Bahman Ahmadi $ 3,718.83
Rent Stabilization Board Carole Marasovic $ 3,324.54
Rent Stabilization Board Nathan Mizell* $ 2,088.17
Rent Stabilization Board Pawel Moldenhawer $ 563.33
School Board Trustee Reichi Lee $ 54,842.55
School Board Trustee Jennifer Shanoski* $ 36,979.00
School Board Trustee Michael Chang* $ 19,731.44
School Board Trustee Ka'Dijah A. Brown* $ 7,130.71
School Board Trustee Mara Kolesas $ 5,292.44
School Board Trustee Tatiana Guerreiro Ramos $ 4,844 .19
School Board Trustee Norma Harrison $ 538
City Council District 1 Rashi Kesarwani* $ 67,358.32
City Council District 1 Elisa Mikiten $ 24,663.99
City Council District 1 Tamar Michai Freeman  $ 6,044.22
Council District 4 Kathryn Harrison* $ 61,727.26
Council District 4 Gregory Magofna $ 4,121.73
Council District 7 Rigel Robinson* $ 30,487.61
Council District 7 Aidan Hill $ 1,298.22
Council District 8 Mark Humbert* $ 57,815.00
Council District 8 Mari Mendonca $ 25,405.85
Council District 8 Mary-Lee Smith $ 8,934.94
Council District 8 Jay Wu $ 445,99
Council District 8 Peter DuMont $
*Indicates winning candidate. Note: Amounts taken from most recent filed Form 460 for time
periods ending in December, line item 10, "TOTAL EXPENDITURES MADE", Column B
(calendar year to date), or expenditures made during the last reported period (Column A) if
higher. If a candidate reported spending in 2023, that amount was added to the 2022
cumulative total.




ITEM 7

2022 - Independent Expenditures

Support/
Office Candidate Expenditure Oppose Expenditure Source
School Board Jennifer Shanoski $11,080 Support  Berkeley Federation of Teachers
$7,563 Support  California Federation of Teachers
Total $18,643
Mike Chang $11,080 Support  Berkeley Federation of Teachers
$7,563 Support  California Federation of Teachers
Total $18,643
Ka’'Dijah Brown $11.080 Support  Berkeley Federation of Teachers
$7,563 Support  California Federation of Teachers
Total $18,643

2020 - Independent Expenditures

Support/
Office Candidate Expenditure Oppose Expenditure Source
Rent Board Bahman Ahmadi $5,756 Support  Committee for Ethical Housing
$54,143 Support  Nat’l Assoc of Realtors Fund
$59,899
Soulmaz Panahi $5,756 Support  Committee for Ethical Housing
$17,791 Support  Nat’l Assoc of Realtors Fund
$23,547
Dan McDunn $5,756 Support  Committee for Ethical Housing
$17,791 Support  Nat’l Assoc of Realtors Fund
$23,547
Wendy Saenz Hood $5,756 Support  Committee for Ethical Housing
Neufeld $17,791 Support  Nat’l Assoc of Realtors Fund
$23,547
Pawel Moldenhawer $5,756 Support  Committee for Ethical Housing
City Terry Taplin $7,202 Support  Berk. Neighbors for Affordability
Council
Alex Sharenko $7,202 Support  Berk. Neighbors for Affordability
$9,871 Support  Nat’l Assoc of Realtors Fund
$17,073
Cheryl Davila $41,958 Oppose  CA Real Estate Cmte - CAR
$9,659 Support  East Bay Working Families




ITEM 10
Health and Safety Protocols for In-Person Meetings of
Berkeley Boards and Commissions
February 2023

The policy below applies to in-person meetings of Berkeley Boards and Commissioners
held in accordance with the Government Code (Brown Act) after the end of the State-
declared emergency on February 28, 2023.

Vaccination Status
All attendees are encouraged to be fully up to date on their vaccinations,
including any boosters for which they are eligible.

Health Status Precautions

For members of the public who are feeling sick, including but not limited to
cough, shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, fever or chills, muscle or body
aches, vomiting or diarrhea, or new loss of taste or smell, it is recommended that
they do not attend the meeting in-person as a public health precaution. In these
cases, the public may submit comments in writing in lieu of attending in-person.

If an in-person attendee has been in close contact, as defined below, with a
person who has tested positive for COVID-19 in the past five days, they are
advised to wear a well-fitting mask (N95s, KN95s, KF94s are best), test for
COVID-19 3-5 days from last exposure, and consider submitting comments in
writing in lieu of attending in-person.

Close contact is defined as someone sharing the same indoor airspace, e.g.,
home, clinic waiting room, airplane, etc., for a cumulative total of 15 minutes or
more over a 24-hour period within 2 days before symptoms of the infected
person appear (or before a positive test for asymptomatic individuals); or having
contact with COVID-19 droplets (e.g., being coughed on while not wearing
recommended personal protective equipment).

A voluntary sign-in sheet will be available at the meeting entry for in-person
attendees. This will assist with contact tracing in case of COVID-19 contact
resulting from the meeting.

Members of City Commissions are encouraged to take a rapid COVID-19 test on
the day of the meeting.

Face Coverings/Mask

Face coverings or masks that cover both the nose and mouth are encouraged for
all commissioners, staff, and attendees at an in-person City Commission
meeting. Face coverings will be provided by the City and available for attendees
to use at the meeting. Members of Commissions, city staff, and the public are
encouraged to wear a mask at all times, except when speaking publicly from the
dais or at the public comment podium, although masking is encouraged even
when speaking.



VI.

VII.

ITEM 10
Health and Safety Protocols for In-Person Meetings of
Berkeley Boards and Commissions
February 2023

Physical Distancing

Currently, there are no physical distancing requirements in place by the State of
California or the Local Health Officer for an indoor event similar to a Commission
meeting.

Audience seating capacity will be at regular allowable levels per the Fire Code.
Capacity limits will be posted at the meeting location. However, all attendees are
requested to be respectful of the personal space of other attendees. An area of
the public seating area will be designated as “distanced seating” to
accommodate persons that need to distance for personal health reasons.

Distancing will be implemented for the dais as space allows.

Protocols for Teleconference Participation by Commissioners
Upon the repeal of the state-declared emergency, all standard Brown Act
requirements will be in effect for Commissioners participating remotely due to an
approved ADA accommodation. For Commissioners participating remotely, the
agenda must be posted at the remote location, the remote location must be
accessible to the public, and the public must be able to participate and give
public comment from the remote location.
e A Commissioner at a remote location will follow the same health and safety
protocols as in-person meetings.
¢ A Commissioner at a remote location may impose reasonable capacity
limits at their location.

Hand Washing/Sanitizing
Hand sanitizing stations are available at the meeting locations. The bathrooms
have soap and water for handwashing.

Air Flow/Circulation/Sanitizing
Air filtration devices are used at all meeting locations. Window ventilation may be
used if weather conditions allow.



CHECK COVID-19

SYMPTOMS

Cough Fever or Chills Lost of taste or smell Congestion
Body aches Shortness of breath Sore throat Vomiting or Diarrhea

HAVE SYMPTOMS? IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT YOU

1) Stay Home 2) Monitor Symptoms 3) Get tested

SYMPTOMS CAN APPEAR 2-14 DAYS FROM EXPOSURE




Masks Encouraged

Masks that cover the
nose and mouth are

encouraged for all
attendees.

(Masks available upon request)

T




Page 1 of 66 ITEM 11 20

Anternal = { Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

{ Formatted: Centered

a4 CITY CPUNCILMEMBER n—

RIGEL RPBINSON

DISTRICT 7

SUPPLEMENTAL
AGENDA MATERIAL
for Supplemental Packet 1

Meeting Date: February 28, 2022
Item Number: 19

Item Description: Reforms to Public Comment Procedures at meetings of the Berkeley City
Council

Submitted by: Councilmember Robinson (Author), Councilmember Susan Wengraf (Co-
sponsor)

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt a Resolution revising the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order: Section IV. Conduct
of the Meeting and Appendix C Temporary Rules for The Conduct of City Council Meetings
Through Video Conference During The Covid-19 Emergency to:

1. Consolidate ron
and-public comment on Action Items excludlnq publlc hearlnqs appeals and/or other
quasi-judicial matters, into a single public comment period teward-at the start of the
CouneibmestingAction Calendar. eonsistentwith-the-Berkeley-Unified-School-Districts
public-comment-procedure)-and continue to provide for additional time for public

comment at the end of meetings_and separate public comment periods toward the
beginning of the Council meeting for the Consent Calendar and information items, and

for non- aqenda matters ;

3:2. Rescind Resolution No. 70,091- N.S



Page 2 of 66 ITEM 11

Jnternal B {Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

{ Formatted: Centered

Rationale for Recommendation

Public comment plays a critical role in the policy-making process. However, the current system
for scheduling public comment leaves significant room for improvement. Rresidents should be
able to opine and advocate to the City Council without having to wait for many hours before the
item is taken up, and even-sometimes learning that the item will not be heard at all. In order to
improve the predictability of the flow of Council meetings, members of the public should have
some certainty that they will have the opportunity to advocate to their elected representatives at
a reasonable hour in the evening. That can be achieved by holding public comment on Action
Calendar items at a single time, immediately after the adoption of the Consent Calendar.

Fhe-original-Former Councilmember Droste’s version of this item sought to consolidate all public
comment into a single comment period, as well as Creatlnq protocols for council to limit the total

number of speakers-
supplemental does not seek to limit the abllltv in any way, of the public to give public comment.

The purpose of this supplemental item is to create a-better-a more equitable system for public
comment, one where residents can show up to a council meeting and reasonably expect that
they will be able to address the council by 9 PM. Those who wish to continue to listen to the
council’s business until the council adjourns are welcome and encouraged to do so.

Additionally, by taking public comment on action items at the start of the Action Calendar, the
presiding officer may be-betterequipped-to-identify which-items the council will have time to
address during a given meeting. This has benefits for the public, as well as for city staff, who
have at times been in the position of being on hand all evening to present on an item that is not

ultimately heard.

By scheduling comments on action calendar items at the start of the Action Calendar, we can

prioritize the perspectives of the public and respect both staff’'s and the public’s time, [Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Current Situation and Its Effects

City Council has occasionally tried to rebalance the City’s approach to public comment at
Council meetings to create a more welcoming atmosphere, conduct the people’s business
efficiently, and ensure elected officials have time to give items due consideration. Unfortunately,
members of the public, applicants/appellants, and staff frequently have to wait for hours before

an item is heard or unexpectedly moved to another meetlng Ihr&r&dee%—the—way—pubhe

Mayer-This prevents many ordinary people partlcularly those who have small children or work
long hours, from having a reasonable opportunlty to prowde public comment and hear the
Councn dellberate

Background and Rationale
Pursuant to the Brown Act, Section 54954.3, members of the public shall be afforded the

opportunity to speak on any agenda item of a substantive nature providing they are first
recognized by the presiding officer. City Council greatly values input and comment from a broad
cross-section of the public on legislative matters. The City of Berkeley and Councilmembers
appreciate and admire the dedication of the many-mainstays who voice their epriniensopinions

at public comment. Nevertheless, other community members often feel overwhelmed and
intimidated by the prospect of enduring hours-long City Council meetings, not just to provide
public comment but to even hear the Council’s discussions. Having to wait through heurs-of



Page 3 of 66

public-eommenthours of discussion on many different action items {much-of-which-is-often
duplicative)-before one gets to participate at an unspecified, unpredictable time and/or-hearthe
position of one’s elected representatives i

is neither fair, equitable, nor good for democracy.
Especially for those with young children or who work in the evenings, the unpredictable and
onerous way that Action Calendar public comment currently operates is inequitable and
prevents valuable community members from participating in the public process.

Public comment and Council procedures have undergone iterations before. Most recently,
Mayor Arreguin offered an amendment to require three councilmembers to agree to pull an item
from the Consent Calendar to the Action Calendar, instead of one councilmember or four public
speakers. This change dramatically helped meetings run smoother and ensured that
uncontroversial and broad-consensus eonsent-calendaritems were not subject to attempts at
obstructionism or unduly long debates which extended meeting times.

Even with that positive change, the current approach to public comment ironically does not likely
widen opportunities for civic engagement; but instead serves to preclude a more representative
sample of participants—as political scientists from Boston University have found. Currently,
many residents must wait for extended periods of time in order to provide public comment on

specific-legistationaction items on Action, since no specific times are available-forwhen-a-piece

ef—leg+slat+en—wd4—be—hea~cd— SS|gned Iha&meaa%%hat—peeple—wh&may—ea;edeeply—abem—a

The Brown Act actually provides leeway for the City to consider other approaches to public
comment. Under the Brown Act, the City must allow the public to comment on any agenda item;
and there are certain items that require ensuring public comment from all interested parties
(e.g., quasi-judicial proceedings and public hearings where due process demands allowing
comment from all partlmpants) But for most |tems the Brown Act permlts agenmes to limit-the

neutrakconsohdate public comment Wh||e th|s could enta|l moving aII pubhc comment into a
single comment period, this supplementaitem merely combines public comment on Action
Calendar items—excluding public hearings, appeals, and/or other quasi-judicial matters—into
one comment period at the beginning of the Action Calendar.

The current approach to public comment on the Action Calendar is inequitable and discourages
participation from many community members. Consolidating Action Calendar public comment

into one comment period would make the time that public comment occurs on action items far

more predictable and boost the ability of community members to participate in public comment.
Especially for working families and those with evening obligations, waiting potentially five hours
to speak on an action item that will be taken up at an unspecified time—or may be continued to
another meeting instead—is not feasible. While the time the Action Calendar is taken up would

remain unspecified, the window in which it is likely to be would be far narrower and earlier in the
meeting than the window during which |nd|V|duaI |tems mav currentlv be discussed or removed
from the agenda. A e y v’

ITEM 11

{Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

{ Formatted: Centered




Page 4 of 66

Best Practices

Berkeley Unified School District

The Berkeley Unified School District has adopted a practice that is likely more conducive to
allowing a broader participation of residents in the civic process. There are two opportunities for
public comment, one at the beginning and one at the end of the meeting. By allowing public
comment at the beginning of the meeting, individuals do not have to wait for hours for an item
with an unknown start time. And In other cities, the presiding officer can limit individual
presentations, the amount of time allotted for public input, and/or limit the number of speakers
with similar positions.

This item-supplemental-item simply proposes to combine public comment on the Action
Calendar into one comment period, leaving public comment on the Consent Calendar and other
items unchanged. This would significantly increase the predictability of when public comment on

many important action items will occur while still providing a separate opportunity to comment

on other items.proposes-to-use the-approach-used by BUSD-

Fiscal Impacts

ITEM 11

{Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

{ Formatted: Centered

[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"




Page 5 of 66

De minimis costs for staff to revise local and public-facing digital copies of the City Council’s
Rules of Procedure and time and materials costs for any printing of physical copies.

Long-term fiscal impacts are speculative, but reduced Council and staff time for the receipt and
management of in-person and virtual public comment have a strong potential to reduce City
costs. The cost reductions would be highly variable depending on the number and nature of
staff present at any given City Council meeting.

Alternative Actions Considered
Alternative Actions include but are not limited to:
e Leaving existing public comment policies and procedures unchanged.
« Adopting a limit on the number of combined public speakers, or on the number of public
speakers for each item.
e Combining all public comment into a single public comment period toward the beginning
of each meeting.

These optlons were rejected in favor of th&mere—#}edﬁand—#ue—appreaeh—ehwenﬂ-y—used—by#re

a-an

approach that solves the most fundamental issue W|th publlc comment procedure—the

unpredictability of when individual action items will be taken up—while maximizing public
participation by leaving other public comment periods unchanged.

Contact Person

Councilmember Leri-Droste-{legistative-aide-Eric-Panzer)Rigel Robinson (510-981-7170)

Sam Greenberg, Legislative Aide
(samgreenberg@cityofberkeley.info )erpanzer@cityofberkeley-info,

Phone-5140-984-7480,

A

ITEM 11

{ Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

{ Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

[
{ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial
[
[

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial




Page 6 of 66

Internal

RESOLUTION NO ## ###-N.S.

RE-ADOPTING THE CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE AND ORDER AND
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 70,091-N.S.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the revised
sections of the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order attached hereto as Exhibit A shall
replace wholesale the corresponding sections of the existing City Council Rules of Procedure
and Order attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the revised City Council Rules of Procedure and Order
(Exhibit B as amended by Exhibit A) shall govern all proceedings of the City Council therein
described, subject to the exceptions and deviations provided for in such rules.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that violation of these rules shall not be construed as a penal
offense, except as provided for by the adopted Rules of Procedure and Order.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council shall review its Rules of Procedure and Order in
March of each odd-numbered year per April 26, 2016 City Council action.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Resolution No 70,091-N.S. is hereby rescinded.

Exhibits
Exhibit A: Sections of the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order to be revised
Exhibit B: Existing City Council Rules of Procedure and Order

ITEM 11

[ Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

[ Formatted: Centered




Page 7 of 66 ITEM 11

Anternal = { Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

{ Formatted: Centered

Exhibit A: Sections of the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order to be Revised
IV.CONDUCT OF MEETING

A. Comments from the Public
Public comment will be taken in the following order:

e Aninitial ten- m|nute penod of publlc comment on non- agenda |tems—theeensen4 [Formaued; Not Strikethrough

maﬁer)—and—H#eFmahen—l&ems after the commencement of the meetlng and

immediately after Ceremonial Matters and City Manager Comments.

e Public comment on the Consent and Information Calendars. (Formatted: Not Strikethrough

¢ Public comment on the Action Calendar,

‘ Formatted: Not Strikethrough

o Public comment on getien-items;-any appeals, andforpublic hearings, and/or other L
quasi-judicial matters requiring extended public comment for due process purposes, as \\Formatted: Not Strikethrough

they are taken up under procedures set forth in the sections governing each below.
e Public comment on non-agenda items from any speakers who did not speak during the

first round of non-agenda public comment at the beginning of the meeting. \ Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall
have more than four minutes. A speaker wishing to yield their time shall identify themselves,
shall be recognized by the chair, and announce publicly their intention to yield their time.
Disabled persons shall have priority seating in the front row of the public seating area.

A member of the public may only speak once during any single at-public comment period-en-any
single-item, unless called upon by the Mayor or a Councilmember to answer a specific inquiry,
or unless the individual is speaking with respect to a public hearing, a quasi-judicial matter,
and/or any other item requiring unrestricted public comment as a matter of due process.

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium, raise

their hands on Zoom, or otherwise indicate their intent to speak in order to be recognized and to
determine the number of persons interested in speaking at that time.

If ten or fewer persons are interested in speaking virtually or in person, each speaker may
speak for two minutes at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. If there are more than ten
persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer shall limit the public comment for all
speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one another,
however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes.




Page 8 of 66

These procedures/limits also apply to public hearings except for those which would be
precluded by the types of due process public hearings specifically provided for in Section 2,
below.

1. Publlc Comment on Consent Calendar and Informatlon Items

Priorto-this-initial-general public comment-peried-Tthe Council will first determine whether to

move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the “Consent Calendar,” and/or
move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Items that remain on the “Consent Calendar” are
voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted upon at the
Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent.”

.The Council will then take public comment on any items that are either on the amended
Consent Calendar or the Information Calendar. A speaker may only speak once during the
perlod for public comment on Consent Calendar and Informatlon |tems MM

ttems—fFem—theiQensent—Galendat—te—Aenen—th—Nno addltlonal |tems can be moved onto

the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced.

At any time during, or immediately after-the-initiatperiod-ef-generat -public comment on
Information and Consent items, the Mayor or any Councilmember may move any Information
or Consent item to “Action.” Three or more members of the City Council, including the Mayor,
may move any Consent Item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will vote on the items
remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.

JFor items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar,
persons who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may
speak again at the time the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar.

2. Public Comment on Action Items.
After the initial ten minutes of public comment on non-agenda items, public comment on
consent and information items, and adoption of the Consent Calendar, the public may
comment on each remaining item listed on the agenda for action as-the-item-is-takenup-in a
single public comment period at the beginning of the Action Calendar.

ITEM 11

{ Formatted:

Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

{ Formatted:

Centered

{ Formatted:

Not Strikethrough

{ Formatted:

Not Strikethrough

{ Formatted:

Not Strikethrough

{ Formatted:

Not Strikethrough

{ Formatted:

Not Strikethrough

{ Formatted:

Not Strikethrough

{ Formatted:

Not Strikethrough

{ Formatted:

Not Strikethrough

{ Formatted:

Not Strikethrough




43. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters.

Page 9 of 66 ITEM 11

Anternal = [ Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

[ Formatted: Centered

.The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium to be \ Formatted: Not Strikethrough

recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at that time.

J|f ten or fewer persons are interested in speaking, each speaker may speak for two minutes. \ Formatted: Not Strikethrough

If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield
their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes.

.This procedure also applies to public hearings except those types of public hearings \ Formatted: Not Strikethrough

specifically provided for in this section, below.

32. Appeals Appearing on Action Calendar. \ Formatted: Not Strikethrough

With the exception of appeals from decisions of the Zoning Adjustments Board and
Landmarks Preservation Commission, appeals from decisions of City commissions appear
on the “Action” section of the Council Agenda. Council determines whether to affirm the
action of the commission, set a public hearing, or remand the matter to the commission.
Appeals of proposed special assessment liens shall also appear on the “Action” section of
the Council Agenda. Appeals from decisions of the Zoning Adjustments Board and
Landmarks Preservation Commission are automatically set for public hearing and appear on
the “Public Hearings” section of the Council Agenda._The procedures for public comment on
appeals from these two bodies and attendant public hearings shall be the same as
described below for all other commission appeals.

Time shall be provided for public comment for persons representing both sides of the
action/appeal and each side will be allocated seven minutes to present their comments on
the appeal. Where the appellant is not the applicant, the appellants of a single appeal
collectively shall have seven minutes to comment and the applicant shall have seven
minutes to comment. If there are multiple appeals filed, each appellant or group of
appellants shall have seven minutes to comment. Where the appellant is the applicant, the
applicant/appellant shall have seven minutes to comment and the persons supporting the
action of the board or commission on appeal shall have seven minutes to comment. In the
case of an appeal of a proposed special assessment lien, the appellant shall have seven
minutes to comment.

After the conclusion of the seven-minute comment periods, members of the public may
comment on the appeal. Comments from members of the public regarding appeals shall be
limited to one minute per speaker. Any person that addressed the Council during one of the
seven-minute periods may not speak again during the public comment period on the appeal.
Speakers may yield their time to one other speaker, however, no speaker shall have more
than two minutes. Each side shall be informed of this public comment procedure at the time
the Clerk notifies the parties of the date the appeal will appear on the Council agenda.

JImmediately following Ceremonial Matters and the City Manager Comments and prior to the " Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Consent Calendar, persons will be selected by lottery to address matters not on the Council
agenda. If five or fewer persons submit speaker cards for the lottery, each person selected
will be allotted two minutes each. If more than five persons submit speaker cards for the
lottery, up to ten persons will be selected to address matters not on the Council agenda and
each person selected will be allotted one minute each. Persons wishing to address the



Page 10 of 66 ITEM 11

Anternal = { Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

{ Formatted: Centered

Council on matters not on the Council agenda during the initial ten-minute period for such
comment, must submit a speaker card to the City Clerk in person at the meeting location
and prior to commencement of that meeting.

The remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be
heard at the end of the agenda. Speaker cards are not required for this second round of
public comment on non-agenda matters.

Persons submitting speaker cards are not required to list their actual name, however they " Formatted: Not Strikethrough

must list some identifying information or alternate name in order to be called to speak.

For the second round of public comment on non-agenda matters, the Presiding Officer
retains the authority to limit the number of speakers by subject. The Presiding Officer will
generally request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium, raise their hand on
zoom, or otherwise te-be recognized to determine the number of persons interested in
speaking at that time. Each speaker will be entitled to speak for two minutes each unless the
Presiding Officer determines that one-minute is appropriate given the number of speakers.

Pursuant to this document, no Council meeting shall continue past 11:00 p.m. unless a two-
thirds majority of the Council votes to extend the meeting to discuss specified items. If any
agendized business remains unfinished at 11:00 p.m. or the expiration of any extension
after 11:00 p.m., it will be referred to the Agenda & Rules Committee for scheduling
pursuant to Chapter Il, Section F. In that event, the meeting shall be automatically extended
for up to fifteen (15) minutes for public comment on non-agenda items.

54. Ralph M. Brown Act Pertaining to Public Comments. Formatted: Not Strikethrough

The Brown Act prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on an issue raised
during Public Comment, unless it is specifically listed on the agenda. However, the Council
may refer a matter to the City Manager.

APPENDIX C. TEMPORARY RULES FOR THE CONDUCT OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS
THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCE DURING THE COVID-19 EMERGENCY

Public Comment Speaking Time

With the exception of prescribed times in the Rules of Procedure for public hearings, the amount

of time for each speaker during public comment is limited to twoere minutes maximum and, that \ Formatted: Not Strikethrough

speakers can only address an agenda item once, however the Presiding Officer has the

discretion to reduce speaker time if needed in order to allow the orderly conduct of the meeting, | Formatted: Not Strikethrough

subject to the consent of a majority of the City Council. Speakers may vyield their time for a | Formatted: Not Strikethrough

maximum of four minutes per individual. If a speaker wishes to yield their time, they must | Formatted: Not Strikethrough

indicate so when called on by the Presiding Officer and state who they are yielding their speaker
time to. The Presiding Officer will keep a list with the names and amount of time yielded to
individuals.

In order to inform members of the public of their place in the speaker's queue, the Presiding
Officer will call the names of 5 speakers at a time.



Page 11 of 66

Internal

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters willmay be conducted in the order of hands raised on
the Zoom platform_or based upon a lottery or similar system, and will be limited to either the first
10 speakers during the initial round of Non-Agenda public comment, as well as all hands raised
during the closing round of Non-Agenda public comment at the conclusion to the meeting, until
such time that the meeting adjourns., If there are five or fewer speakers with hands raised for
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters, each speaker will have two minutes to address the
City Council. If there are more than five speakers with their hands raised then speaker time will
be limited to one minute per person. The procedure for selection of Non-Agenda speakers
prescribed in the Rules of Procedure by random draw is suspended for videoconference
meetings where there is no physical meeting location.

ITEM 11

{ Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue

{ Formatted: Centered

‘ Formatted: Not Strikethrough

‘\ Formatted: Not Strikethrough

‘\ Formatted: Not Strikethrough




Page 12 of 66 ITEM 11

Anternal = [ Formatted: Font: 8.5 pt, Font color: Blue
[ Formatted: Centered
Exhibit B:

City Council Rules of Procedure and Order



Page 13 of 66 ITEM 11

Lori Droste
Councilmember, District 8

ACTION CALENDAR
March 14, 2023
(Continued from February 28, 2023)

To: Honorable Mayor Jesse Arreguin and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Lori Droste
Subject: Reforms to Public Comment Procedures at meetings of the Berkeley City Council

Recommendation

Adopt a Resolution revising the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order: Section IV. Conduct
of the Meeting and Appendix C Temporary Rules for The Conduct of City Council Meetings
Through Video Conference During The Covid-19 Emergency to:

1. Consolidate non-agenda public comment, public comment on the Consent Calendar,
and public comment on Action Items into a single public comment period toward the start
of the Council meeting (consistent with the Berkeley Unified School District’s public
comment procedure), and continue to provide for additional time for public comment at
the end of meetings;

2. Adopt reasonable limits on the overall number of public speakers (consistent with rulings
from the Second District Court of Appeal) with a mechanism for the City Council to
extend public comment; and

3. Rescind Resolution No. 70,091— N.S

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

On January 30, 2023, the Agenda and Rules Committee adopted the following action: M/S/C
(Arreguin/Bartlett) to send the item to the City Council with a negative recommendation that no
action be taken on the item. Vote: Ayes — Bartlett, Arreguin; Noes — None; Absent - Hahn.

Current Situation and Its Effects

City Council has occasionally tried to rebalance the City’s approach to public comment at
Council meetings to create a more welcoming atmosphere, conduct the people’s business
efficiently, and ensure elected officials have time to give items due consideration. Unfortunately,
members of the public, applicants/appellants, and staff frequently have to wait for hours before
an item is heard or unexpectedly moved to another meeting. This is due to the way public
comment was established prior to the tenure of any of the current Councilmembers or the
Mayor. This prevents many ordinary people, particularly those who have small children or work
long hours, from having a reasonable opportunity to provide public comment and hear the
Council deliberate. It also deprives the Council of the time needed for adequate consideration of
items, especially major policy efforts, and frequently pushes important items to future meetings.

Background and Rationale
Pursuant to the Brown Act, Section 54954.3, members of the public shall be afforded the
opportunity to speak on any agenda item of a substantive nature providing they are first




Page 14 of 66 ITEM 11

recognized by the presiding officer. City Council greatly values input and comment from a broad
cross-section of the public on legislative matters. The City of Berkeley and Councilmembers
appreciate and admire the dedication of the many mainstays at public comment. Nevertheless,
other community members often feel overwhelmed and intimidated by the prospect of enduring
hours-long City Council meetings, not just to provide public comment but to even hear the
Council’s discussions. Having to wait through hours of public comment (much of which is often
duplicative) before one gets to participate and/or hear the position of one’s elected
representatives is neither fair, equitable, nor good for democracy.

Public comment and Council procedures have undergone iterations before. Most recently,
Mayor Arreguin offered a very successful and equitable amendment to require three
councilmembers to agree to pull an item from the consent calendar to the action calendar,
instead of one councilmember or four public speakers. This change dramatically helped
meetings run smoother and ensured that uncontroversial and broad-consensus consent
calendar items were not subject to attempts at obstructionism or unduly long debates which
extended meeting times.

Even with that positive change, the current approach to public comment ironically does not likely
widen opportunities for civic engagement; but instead serves to preclude a more representative
sample of participants—as political scientists from Boston University have found. Currently,
many residents must wait for extended periods of time in order to provide public comment on
specific legislation, since no specific times are available for when a piece of legislation will be
heard. This means that people who may care deeply about a particular issue are discouraged
from participating in favor or those who have a general interest in speaking and the time to sit
through the entirety of a meeting. Although their commitment and interest are commendable,
such individuals are not necessarily representative of the broader public.

The Brown Act actually provides leeway for the City to consider other approaches to public
comment. Under the Brown Act, the City must allow the public to comment on any agenda item;
and there are certain items that require ensuring public comment from all interested parties
(e.g., quasi-judicial proceedings and public hearings where due process demands allowing
comment from all participants). But for most items, the Brown Act permits agencies to limit the
amount of time for public comment on any given item, provided that such limits are content-
neutral. For example, for most Council items, the City Council would be permitted under the
Brown Act to impose a 10-minute limit on public comment, comprising ten speakers with one
minute each, with the speakers determined on a lottery or first-come, first-served basis.
Alternatively, the City Council could also adopt a content-neutral limitation on the number of
speakers for a general public comment period at the start of each meeting which covers all
agenda and non-agenda comments—as proposed in this item.

In its decision in the 2018 Ribakoff v. City of Long Beach, et al. decision, the Second District
Court of Appeal ruled in part:

“On the other hand, having no limit on either the length of any particular presentation by
a member of the public or on the number of public speakers (or on the total time for
public comment) has the potential for endless discussion—given the potential that
there will be a far greater number of members of the public who may wish to speak to an
issue than there are staff and guests who make presentations concerning it. The number
of staff and invited guests speaking on a topic will clearly be limited; the potential for
public speakers is potentially extensive and needs some reasonable limitation.



Page 15 of 66 ITEM 11

We do not suggest that members of the public may not have expertise, or that their
presentations would be of lesser value than those of the invited, expert staff and guest
speakers, only that their number must be considered in weighing the time allotted
to public participation. Indeed, this concern was a factor in shaping the text of
Government Code section 54954.3 as it moved through the Legislature with
amendments to the Brown Act adopted in 1986. On the one hand, the Legislature
declared the importance of open governance and the public’s right to participate. On the
other, it validated enactment of limits on public speakers so that the business of
government could function. (Gov. Code, § 54954.3.)23[emphasis added]”

Members of the public would still have ample additional means of addressing their concerns to
councilmembers, including in-person meetings and office hours, written correspondence,
emails, telephone calls, and social media/online platforms. Although it is beyond the scope of
this item, the City may also wish to explore expanding and enhancing Berkeley Considers to
provide a new platform for community members to provide comments on upcoming Council
items. Berkeley could potentially pioneer having a “one-stop shop” for members of the public to
provide feedback on upcoming Council items and have that feedback delivered to Council in a
formalized and easily visualized format.

Best Practices

Berkeley Unified School District

The Berkeley Unified School District has adopted a practice that is likely more conducive to
allowing a broader participation of residents in the civic process. There are two opportunities for
public comment, one at the beginning and one at the end of the meeting. By allowing public
comment at the beginning of the meeting, individuals do not have to wait for hours for an item
with an unknown start time. And In other cities, the presiding officer can limit individual
presentations, the amount of time allotted for public input, and/or limit the number of speakers
with similar positions. This item proposes to use the approach used by BUSD.

Fiscal Impacts
De minimis costs for staff to revise local and public-facing digital copies of the City Council’s
Rules of Procedure and time and materials costs for any printing of physical copies.

Long-term fiscal impacts are speculative, but reduced Council and staff time for the receipt and
management of in-person and virtual public comment have a strong potential to reduce City
costs. The cost reductions would be highly variable depending on the number and nature of
staff present at any given City Council meeting.

Alternative Actions Considered

Alternative Actions include but are not limited to:
e Leaving existing public comment policies and procedures unchanged.
e Adopting a limit on the number of public speakers for each item.

These options were rejected in favor of the more “tried and true” approach currently used by the
Berkeley Unified School District, as well as other jurisdictions and agencies across California.

Contact Person

Councilmember Lori Droste (legislative aide Eric Panzer)
erpanzer@cityofberkeley.info

Phone: 510-981-7180




Page 16 of 66 ITEM 11

RESOLUTION NO ##,###-N.S.

RE-ADOPTING THE CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE AND ORDER AND
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 70,091-N.S.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the revised
sections of the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order attached hereto as Exhibit A shall
replace wholesale the corresponding sections of the existing City Council Rules of Procedure
and Order attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the revised City Council Rules of Procedure and Order
(Exhibit B as amended by Exhibit A) shall govern all proceedings of the City Council therein
described, subject to the exceptions and deviations provided for in such rules.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that violation of these rules shall not be construed as a penal
offense, except as provided for by the adopted Rules of Procedure and Order.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council shall review its Rules of Procedure and Order in
March of each odd-numbered year per April 26, 2016 City Council action.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Resolution No 70,091-N.S. is hereby rescinded.

Exhibits
Exhibit A: Sections of the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order to be revised
Exhibit B: Existing City Council Rules of Procedure and Order



Page 17 of 66 ITEM 11

Exhibit A: Sections of the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order to be Revised

IV.CONDUCT OF MEETING

A. Comments from the Public
Public comment will be taken in the following order:

e An initial ten-minute-period of public comment on non-agenda items, the consent
calendar, action items (excluding public hearings, appeals, and/or other quasi-judicial
matters), and information items, after the commencement of the meeting and
immediately after Ceremonial Matters and City Manager Comments.

« Public comment on the Consent and Information Calendars.

e Public comment on action-items;-any appeals, ardfor-public hearings, and/or other
quasi-judicial matters requiring extended public comment for due process purposes, as
they are taken up under procedures set forth in the sections governing each below.

e Public comment on non-agenda items from any speakers who did not speak during the
first round of nen-agenda-public comment at the beginning of the meeting.

Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall
have more than four minutes. A speaker wishing to yield their time shall identify themselves,
shall be recognized by the chair, and announce publicly their intention to yield their time.
Disabled persons shall have priority seating in the front row of the public seating area.

A member of the public may only speak once at public comment-or-any-single-item, unless
called upon by the Mayor or a Councilmember to answer a specific inquiry, or unless the
individual is speaking with respect to a public hearing, a quasi-judicial matter, and/or any other
item requiring unrestricted public comment as a matter of due process.

Prior to the general public comment period, the Presiding Officer shall announce any planned
changes to the order of the agenda, including any items which are being moved to the Consent
Calendar and/or any items that are being removed from the agenda at the prerogative of the
Presiding Officer and/or the item’s sponsor(s).

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium, raise
their hands on Zoom, or otherwise indicate their intent to speak in order to be recognized and to
determine the number of persons interested in speaking at that time.

If ten or fewer persons are interested in speaking virtually or in person, each speaker may
speak for two minutes at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. If there are more than ten
persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer shall limit the public comment for all
speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one another,
however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes.

A maximum of 50 individuals shall be permitted to speak or yield time during the general public
comment period. This maximum shall apply whether speakers are virtual, in person, or a
combination of the two. In the event that more than 50 individuals wish to speak at a fully virtual
or fully in-person Council meeting, speaking opportunities shall be given on a “first come, first
served” basis.

In the event that more than 50 individuals wish to speak at a “hybrid” Council meeting (with both
a virtual and in-person component), 25 in-person speakers shall be allowed to speak first,




Page 18 of 66 ITEM 11

followed by 25 virtual speakers. For both the virtual and in-person queues, speakers shall be
recognized in the order they lined up or provided virtual notification of their intent to speak. If the
queue for either type of speaker is exhausted while speakers of the other type remain, the
remaining individuals in either queue will be allowed to speak, up to the overall 50-speaker
maximum.

The maximum number of speakers/yielders may be increased up to 100 total individuals by a
two-thirds (2/3) vote of the City Council. Increases above 100 total individuals speaking or
yielding shall require a unanimous vote of the City Council. In no case shall these limits be
applied to items which require unconstrained public comment to ensure due process.

These procedures/limits also apply to public hearings except for those which would be
precluded by the types of due process public hearings specifically provided for in Section 2,
below.

1. Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items.
As described above, public comment on the “Consent Calendar” will be taken as part of the
general public comment period at the start of the Council meeting following Ceremonial
Matters and any comments from the City Manager.

Prior to this initial general public comment period, Fthe Council will first-determine whether to

move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the “Consent Calendar,” and/or
move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Items that remain on the “Consent Calendar” are
voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted upon at the
Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent.”

period of general public comment, the three or more members of City Council may still move
items from the “Consent Calendar” to “Action,” but Nno additional items can be moved onto
the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced.

At any time during, or immediately after; the initial period of general public comment-en
Information-and-Consentitems, the Mayor or any Councilmember may move any Information
or-Consent item to “Action.” Three or more members of the City Council, including the Mayor,
may move any Consent Item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will vote on the items
remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.




32.

. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters.

Page 19 of 66 ITEM 11

Appeals Appearing on Action Calendar.

With the exception of appeals from decisions of the Zoning Adjustments Board and
Landmarks Preservation Commission, appeals from decisions of City commissions appear
on the “Action” section of the Council Agenda. Council determines whether to affirm the
action of the commission, set a public hearing, or remand the matter to the commission.
Appeals of proposed special assessment liens shall also appear on the “Action” section of
the Council Agenda. Appeals from decisions of the Zoning Adjustments Board and
Landmarks Preservation Commission are automatically set for public hearing and appear on
the “Public Hearings” section of the Council Agenda._The procedures for public comment on
appeals from these two bodies and attendant public hearings shall be the same as
described below for all other commission appeals.

Time shall be provided for public comment for persons representing both sides of the
action/appeal and each side will be allocated seven minutes to present their comments on
the appeal. Where the appellant is not the applicant, the appellants of a single appeal
collectively shall have seven minutes to comment and the applicant shall have seven
minutes to comment. If there are multiple appeals filed, each appellant or group of
appellants shall have seven minutes to comment. Where the appellant is the applicant, the
applicant/appellant shall have seven minutes to comment and the persons supporting the
action of the board or commission on appeal shall have seven minutes to comment. In the
case of an appeal of a proposed special assessment lien, the appellant shall have seven
minutes to comment.

After the conclusion of the seven-minute comment periods, members of the public may
comment on the appeal. Comments from members of the public regarding appeals shall be
limited to one minute per speaker. Any person that addressed the Council during one of the
seven-minute periods may not speak again during the public comment period on the appeal.
Speakers may yield their time to one other speaker, however, no speaker shall have more
than two minutes. Each side shall be informed of this public comment procedure at the time
the Clerk notifies the parties of the date the appeal will appear on the Council agenda.




Page 20 of 66 ITEM 11

Individuals wishing to address the Council about non-agenda matters may do so during the
initial period of general public comment, and will count toward the overall limit on the
number of individuals making public comment.

The remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be
heard at the end of the agenda. Speaker cards are not required for this second round of
public comment on non-agenda matters.

For the second round of public comment on non- agenda matters the PreS|d|ng Offlcer
retains the authority to limit the number of speakers by subject. The Presiding Officer will
generally request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium, raise their hand on

zoom, or otherwise te-be recognized to determine the number of persons interested in
speaking at that time. Each speaker will be entitled to speak for two minutes each unless the
Presiding Officer determines that one-minute is appropriate given the number of speakers.

Pursuant to this document, no Council meeting shall continue past 11:00 p.m. unless a two-
thirds majority of the Council votes to extend the meeting to discuss specified items. If any
agendized business remains unfinished at 11:00 p.m. or the expiration of any extension
after 11:00 p.m., it will be referred to the Agenda & Rules Committee for scheduling
pursuant to Chapter Il, Section F. In that event, the meeting shall be automatically extended
for up to fifteen (15) minutes for public comment on non-agenda items.

84. Ralph M. Brown Act Pertaining to Public Comments.
The Brown Act prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on an issue raised
during Public Comment, unless it is specifically listed on the agenda. However, the Council

may refer a matter to the City Manager.

APPENDIX C. TEMPORARY RULES FOR THE CONDUCT OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS
THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCE DURING THE COVID-19 EMERGENCY

Public Comment Speaking Time

With the exception of prescribed times in the Rules of Procedure for public hearings, the amount
of time for each speaker during public comment is limited to tweone minutes maximum and-that

speakers can onIy address an agenda item once—hewever—the—Pre&dmg—Q#reer—has—the

sub}eet—te—the-eensent—ef—a—majenty—ef—ﬂ%ﬁy—eeane# Speakers may y|eId their t|me for a
maximum of four minutes per individual. If a speaker wishes to yield their time, they must
indicate so when called on by the Presiding Officer and state who they are yielding their speaker
time to. The Presiding Officer will keep a list with the names and amount of time yielded to
individuals.

In order to inform members of the public of their place in the speaker's queue, the Presiding
Officer will call the names of 5 speakers at a time.

Public Comment en-Noen-Agenda-Matters-willmay be conducted in the order of hands raised on
the Zoom platform_or based upon a lottery or similar system,-anrd-willbe-limited-to-either-the-first




Page 21 of 66

ITEM 11

during the closing round of Non-Agenda public comment at the conclusion to the meeting, until
such time that the meetlng adjourns #—there—are—ﬂve—e#eweespeaker&#ﬁh—hands—r&rsed—ﬁer

The procedure for selectlon of Non-Agenda speakers
prescribed in the Rules of Procedure by random draw is suspended for videoconference
meetings where there is no physical meeting location.





